
Exhibit 
KOREA MARKETING COMMITTEE (KMC) MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, June 17, 2025, at 3:30 p.m.  
GVB Main Conference Room and Zoom 
Zoom Link:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89262397537?pwd=22qPi9GPwQWBbBtZrJMGt6d6dPLCmv.1 
Meeting ID: 892 6239 7537 
Passcode: visitguam 

*online attendance
Members Present: 

1. 7-Day Supermarket - Young Sook Hong
2. Arluis Wedding*
3. Baldyga Group - Annie Joo
4. Crowne Plaza Resort Guam*
5. Docomo Pacific - Flo Hipolito*
6. DON DON DONKI Guam - J. Aguilar*, Uta*
7. Dusit Thani Guam Resort - Elisha Lee
8. Fish Eye Marine Park*
9. G. Kim*
10. Guam Premier Outlets - Monte Mesa, Estella E.*

Suzanne Perez*
11. Guam Reef Hotel - Akihiko Gondo*
12. Hoshino Resorts RISONARE - Miho*
13. International Dining Concepts, LLC - Julia M.*
14. JMK*
15. Leopalace Guam Resort - Keiko Takano*
16. Lotte Duty Free - Jaejun Lee
17. Lotte Hotel Guam - Sunny*
18. Micronesia Mall - Anna T*
19. Nissan Rent A Car Guam - Michael Tamayo*, James Valencia*
20. Pacific Islands Club - Young Kim, Jueyeom Son, Luna Shin
21. Sentry Hospitality LLC - Valerie Carbullido*
22. Spa Ayualam (Premier Beauty and Spa Guam, Inc)

Yuta Hasegawa
23. Stroll - James Rosenberg, Paul Quinto
24. The Tsubaki Tower - JM*
25. The Westin Resort Guam - Yoshi Otani* Julia Kim*
26. Tumon Sands Plaza - Gloria*

Members Absent: 
1. Bayview Hotel
2. Goodwind Development Corporation
3. Guam Guam Style Consulting
4. Guam Hana Tour
5. Guam Plaza Resort & Spa
6. Hard Rock Cafe
7. Hilton Guam Resort & Spa
8. Hotel Nikko Guam
9. Hotel Tano
10. Hyatt Regency Guam
11. Jae Yu
12. Japan Buslines
13. Jeju Air
14. Kloppenburg Enterprises
15. Korea Guam Travel Association (KGTA)
16. Lam Lam Tours (T.P. Micronesia, Inc.)
17. Linden Akademia
18. RIHGA Royal Laguna Guam Resort
19. Royal Orchid Guam Hotel
20. Tommy Hilfiger
21. Triple J Enterprises, Inc.
22. United Airlines
23. University of Guam
24. Valley of the Latte



 
GVB Board/Management/Staff Present:  

1. GVB Director, KMC Chairman – Ho Eun 
2. GVB Acting Director of Global Marketing – Margaret Sablan  
3. GVB Senior Marketing Manager, Korea – Nicole Benavente 
4. GVB Marketing Manager, Korea – Cierra Sulla 
5. GVB Web & IT Coordinator Assistant – Brian Cha  
6. GVB Web & IT Coordinator Assistant – Mike Arroyo 
7. GVB South Korea Country Manager – Jay Park* 
8. GVB Korea Office* 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
● KMC Chairman Mr. Ho Eun called the meeting to order at 3:30 pm. 

 
2. REPORT OF COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN 

● There was no report from Chairman Eun.  
 

3. REPORT OF MANAGEMENT 
● There was no report from management.  
● Senior Marketing Manager Ms. Nicole Benavente presented the latest arrival numbers.  

 

 



 

 

 
 

4. MARKET UPDATES 
● Ms. Benavente presented the travel trade update in Korea and the airline schedule for June, July, 

and August.  

 



 
 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

● Ms. Benavente presented the forecasts.  

 



 

 
○ Chairman Eun inquired if the -22% figure was a comparison to the same period in 2024 or 

the 2024 average. Country Manager Mr. Jay Park confirmed that the -22% represented a 
comparison of the first five months of 2024 and 2025. He stated that with additional night 
flights beginning in June, a 37% increase is anticipated for the corresponding period this 
year compared to last year. Chairman Eun highlighted that despite this, the year-over-year 
increase is only projected to be 9%. 
 

 



 

 
○ Chairman Eun inquired about the basis behind the forecast, specifically regarding the load 

factor percentage applied. Mr. Park clarified that the projected Korea arrival numbers were 
derived from previous seasonality. He noted that night flights, which have a lower load factor 
than day flights, were considered in the projection. This combination of factors is reflected in 
the forecast. Chairman Eun inquired about the load factor for the past five months, which Mr. 
Park confirmed to be 85%. Mr. Park clarified that the remaining percentage also stood at 
85%, attributing the slight discrepancy to the number of foreign passengers. Ms. Benavente 
further elaborated that the forecast specifically pertains to Korean visitor arrivals, not the 
overall passenger count on the aircraft. She highlighted the distinction between the aircraft's 
load factor and the actual number of Korean visitors contributing to that figure. 

○ Mr. Monte Mesa (Guam Premier Outlets/Tumon Sands Plaza) inquired whether airline 
incentives played a role in the projection. Chairman Eun affirmed this, posing a follow-up 
question: "How can we do this?". He pointed out that the $5 million airline turnaround 
support budget is nearly 90% utilized. He stressed that GVB needs to formulate a long-term 
plan ahead, ideally for at least a year, to ensure continued support. 

 
● Ms. Benavente presented the competitive destination update.  

 

 



 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

○ Mr. Mesa asked about potential direct flights to Guam from other international ports. Mr. Park 
stated that discussions are ongoing with Aero K Airlines in Cheongju for direct flights from 
Cheongju to Guam. He also mentioned GVB Korea's marketing efforts, including B2C 

 



 
events in Daejeon and Cheongju, highlighting Cheongju as a potential secondary city for 
direct flights from Korea. Mr. Mesa further inquired if the year's flight projections included 
arrivals from locations other than Incheon and Busan. Mr. Park confirmed a previous indirect 
flight from Daegu via Osaka to Guam. He also noted GVB Korea's upcoming roadshow in 
Daegu and their focus on Gwangju, which has the Muan airport. Despite challenges from the 
Jeju Air incident, Mr. Park expressed optimism about significant demand, indicating 
continued communication with airlines and targeting secondary cities like Gwangju, Daegu, 
and Cheongju. 

○ Ms. Benavente clarified that the current projections reflect known figures. She added that 
discussions are ongoing regarding Korean Air flights from Busan, possibly commencing in 
August, but this information was not included in the projections as it is yet to be confirmed. 

○ Chairman Eun suggested continuing airline subsidies for another one to two years. He 
reasoned that after this period, airline companies would have received all their aircraft 
orders, compelling them to utilize their fleets. Until then, airlines have the discretion to 
choose their operational airports. He urged the committee to persevere, assuring them of 
government support. He emphasized the necessity of this support, highlighting tourism as 
Guam's most vital industry, providing over 20,000 jobs and impacting the lives of over 
70,000 people daily. 

○ James Rosenberg (Stroll) pointed out that Daejeon, one of South Korea's largest cities, also 
has one of the highest average incomes in the country, with an average of 87 million won.  
He observed that Korean visitors to Guam tend to spend less than Taiwanese and Japanese 
visitors. He suggested that by targeting different demographics, such as those from 
Daejeon, Guam could attract visitors with a greater inclination to spend. 

 
5.  OLD BUSINESS 

● Senior Marketing Manager Mrs. Margaret Sablan presented the accomplished marketing projects.   
 

 



 

 
○ Mrs. Sablan highlighted that this was the first Wedding/Honeymoon FAM Tour for 

the Korea Market.  

 
○ Mrs. Sablan extended her gratitude to Arluis Wedding for their significant support of 

this initiative. Addressing concerns about the viability of the wedding market, Mrs. 

 



 
Sablan highlighted a consistent increase in weddings and marriages since 2023. 
Notably, 2024 saw 222,000 marriages, marking a 14.9% rise from the previous year. 

○ Mr. Mesa inquired about the prevalence of traditional Korean weddings in Korea 
versus the growing demand for destination weddings. Mrs. Sablan responded that 
while traditional Korean weddings remain popular, there is increasing interest in 
destination weddings, American-style weddings, and combined wedding/honeymoon 
packages. She also noted the potential for vow renewals and second marriages as 
additional options. Chairman Eun concurred with Mrs. Sablan, elaborating on a 
trend towards smaller weddings and weddings held outside of Korea. Mrs. Sablan 
further highlighted a slow increase in Korea's birth rate and government incentives 
for newly wed couples. 

 

 
○ Mrs. Sablan reported on the sold-out stadium event, noting high attendance. She 

also highlighted the ongoing six-month collaboration with Hanwha Eagles. To 
emphasize Guam's exposure, Mrs. Sablan pointed out that Daejeon, with a 
population of approximately 1.5 million, is South Korea's fifth-largest metropolis. 

 



 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 
○ Mrs. Sablan expressed gratitude to the co-exhibitors for their participation in the 

Seoul International Travel event. The Guam booth garnered significant attention and 
was recognized with "The Best Booth PR Award." 

 
  
6.  NEW BUSINESS 

● Mrs. Sablan presented the ongoing/upcoming marketing projects.  
 

 



 

 
 

 
○ To bolster night-flight promotions, GVB utilizes its newsletter for dissemination. During the 

SITF delegation visit, Maeil Economy & DongA featured the flights and Guam's offerings 
through an interview with GVB President & CEO Régine Biscoe Lee. This marked her first 

 



 
interview in Korea, where she discussed Guam's attractions, her new presidency, and the 
new GVB administration's goals. 

○ Ms. Mia Soun (GVB Korea Office) discussed the feedback received in Korea regarding their 
PR efforts. She noted that while attending SITF, they engaged with various industry 
reporters, but DongA, a major daily newspaper, and Maeil Economy, a leading economic 
daily newspaper, primarily focused on portraying Guam as a destination for the "Generation 
MZ" — young, energetic, and dynamic, which aligns with President Lee's image. The goal 
was to cultivate a youthful perception of Guam, appeal to younger demographics, 
emphasize the night flight promotion, and highlight Guam's unique attributes. 

 
 

 



 

 
 

 
○ Mrs. Sablan expressed gratitude to the Golf Club partners for agreeing to host the KGGA 

Golf FAM participants and showcasing their properties.  

 



 

 
 
 

● Ms. Benavente presented the FY2025 Budget Summary. 
 

 

 



 
 
 
7. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

● The next KMC meeting will be Tuesday, July 15, 2025, at 3:30 p.m. (subject to change).  
 

COMMITTEE DISCUSSION: 
 

● Korea Roadshow Update: Chairman Eun inquired about upcoming events in Korea. Mr. Park 
confirmed the 2025 Korea Roadshow, an offline event, is tentatively scheduled for mid-September, 
specifically the week of September 15th. This timing avoids the Chuseok Holiday in the first week of 
October, ensuring a sufficient gap. Chairman Eun requested exact dates, and Ms. Benavente stated 
an official letter with details would be provided next month. Mr. Rosenberg asked if the roadshow 
would only be held in Seoul and Busan, and Ms. Benavente confirmed it is still under discussion, 
with consideration for adding more cities. 

● Korean Air Busan Night Flight: Mr. Park announced that Korean Air has opened booking channels 
on its website for the night flight departing from Busan to Guam, noting the Korea team’s increased 
focus on the Busan market. Mr. Rosenberg inquired whether it was a separate flight or a codeshare 
with Jin Air, to which the committee confirmed it’s a separate flight.  

● Electronic Travel Authorization (ETA) Concerns: Mr. Young Min Kim (Pacific Islands Club) shared 
that during a recent Korean Guam Travel Association (KGTA) meeting, there were raised concerns 
about the ETA process, particularly issues observed in early June. He highlighted that individuals 
with a pending ETA status are unable to receive assistance, even after attempting to contact the 
Korean consulate and the U.S. Embassy. Mr. Kim noted that by the time visitors receive ESTA 
approval, it's often too late, and he has seen comments on Korean blogs regarding delays in 
obtaining ESTA on time. Chairman Eun clarified that there are two visa options: ESTA and the 
Guam-CNMI Visa Waiver Program. He inquired whether Mr. Kim's concerns pertained to both or just 
one visa. Mr. Kim responded that the concerns primarily relate to ESTA, as people tend to use it. Mr. 
Jaejun Lee (Lotte Duty Free) explained that ESTA is often preferred because it is free. He added that 
while applicants are advised to apply five days in advance, the process is taking longer. 
Consequently, those who wait until the last minute often resort to paying for the faster G-CNMI visa. 
Chairman Eun emphasized the need to address this issue and suggested that President Lee handle 
it on the government side, with the hope that Congressman Moylan could also intervene. 

● Korean Guam Travel Association (KGTA) Meeting & Optional Tour Focus: Mr. Kim announced 
that the next KGTA meeting will take place at the Lotte Hotel on Friday, June 19, 2025, at 4:00 p.m. 
He stated that any further information from KGTA members would be shared with the KMC. 
Following a recent discussion with KGTA, Chairman Eun expressed interest in expanding the GVB 
platform to include more optional tour companies. This would enable GVB to promote these 
companies, allowing them to benefit from increased visibility. He stressed the importance of 
prioritizing this effort. 

● Free Independent Traveler (FIT) Data: Ms. Jueyeom Son (PIC) inquired about specific data on the 
exact percentage of FITs broken down by hotels. Ms. Benavente said she will request that 
information from the research department. Chairman Eun noted that overall FITs account for 
approximately 60-70%, though this percentage varies significantly by hotel, with some strongly 
focused on FITs while others still depend on wholesalers. Chairman Eun highlighted the clear trend 
away from the previous 80-90% reliance on wholesalers. 

 

 






